ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 2, 2006
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Vic Kohring
Representati ve Sharon G ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Carl Gatto

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW( S) : DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES ON
MEDI CARE PART D

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No action to record
W TNESS REG STER

ESSI EN UKO DEMABI A, Director

State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SH P)

D vision of Senior and Disabilities Services

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the overview on Medicare Part D.

JON SHERWOOD, Medi cal Assistant Adm nistrator for Medicaid

O fice of Program Revi ew

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding Medicare Part
D.

Bl LL ALTLAND, Oaner

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 2, 2006



Whal e Tail Pharnmacy;
Menber, Pharmacy Board
Crai g, Alaska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as a pharnacist regarding
Medi care Part D.

DI RK WHI TE, Omner

Harry Race Pharnmacy & Photo

Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as a pharnmacist regarding
Medi care Part D.

DON ROBERTS

Kodi ak, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as a disability recipient
eligible for Medicare Part D.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Phar naci st

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as a pharmacist regarding

Medi care Part D.

JENNI FER ADAMS, Representative

Anchorage Community Mental Health Services (ACVHS);

Program Coor di nator, Medicare Plan D

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified regarding admnistration of
Medi care Part D.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:04:17 PM
Representatives Kohring, Seaton, G ssna, Gardner, and W]Ison
were present at the call to order.

OVERVI EW( S)
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES ON MEDI CARE PART D

3:04: 35 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the only order of business would be
a presentation by the Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) on the inplenentation of Medicare Part D.

3:05: 55 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 2, 2006



ESSI EN UKO DEMABI A, Director, State Health Insurance Assistance
Program (SHIP), Division of Senior and Disabilities Services,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), stated that the
federal governnent funds a SHIP director in every state through
the Centers for Medicare Services (CVM5) and Medicaid in
conjunction with the U S. Admnistration on Aging and the Senior

Medi care Patrol. The SHI P office distributes information on
Medi care and other federal, state, and private health care plans
that interface wth Medicare prograns. She explained the

el evated demand for information and assistance that began in
2005 due to the inplenentation of the Medicare prescription drug
pl an, Medicare Part D. This revised program provides drug
assistance benefits for those individuals covered by both
Medi caid and Medicare through pharmacy benefit plan conpanies

She described the volunteer program that SH P established in
Al aska to handl e the workload. The focus, she said, has been to
train volunteers who then train nore volunteers to provide one
on one assistance for the elderly and disabled statew de.
Responding to Chair WIson, she said that of the initial 100
vol unteers, 51 provide the elderly and disabled wth assistance

to enroll in Medicare Part D, and stressed that all of the
information and enrollnment criteria is easily accessed via the
internet at www. seni orcareal aska. gov. Further, she clarified

that her position with the state is funded through two federa
grants.

3:09: 05 PM

M5. UKO DEMABI A described the three concurrent prograns which
SHI P admi ni sters: i nformati on dissem nation and enrollnment for
new Medicare Part D enrollees, or re-enrollnment for existing
clients; Social Security Extra Help program for |ow incone
i ndi vidual s who need assistance to cover the Medicare "doughnut
hole;" and the Al askan SeniorCare (ASC) prescription drug plan
that serves as a wap around for the Medicare program She
fully described the parameters for enrollnent in each of these
prograns and delineated the various eligibility requirenents
based on age, incone, and assets.

3:10: 42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA described the possibility that sone
eligible individuals may require one on one assistance to help

them with this change, and asked how SHIP is instituting this
outreach aspect.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 2, 2006



M5. UKO DEMABIA stated that the departnment is aware of such
situations, thus SH P volunteers nake in-hone welfare checks to
assi st residents. She assured the conmmttee that SH P s
outreach program is extensive, and described the contact
procedures being inplenented, particularly in the villages.

3:16: 06 PM

M5. UKO DEMABI A explained that CMsS finances the three SH P
prograns which are in turn supported by 11 participating
pharmacy benefit plan conpanies which provide 28 plan options
for Al askans. She described issues that have arisen during this
time of change, particularly with participating pharnmacists who
have reported experiencing an inefficiency in accessing
client/programdetails, with resultant delays to the consuner.

3:17: 23 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether every Medicare client was defaulted
to an option with a new benefit plan conpany assigned to cover
their pharmaceutical needs, when Medicare Part D was enacted,
and furthernore, if each client nust now access this default
information to ascertain whether they are appropriately enrolled
and nmake any necessary changes.

3:18: 07 PM

M5. UKO DEMABIA clarified that it was only the dual eligible
Medi caid and Medicare enrollees, who were randomy defaulted to
a new plan in January 2006, and who now have one year to select
fromthe various plans and re-enroll in the one appropriate for
t hem In response to Chair WIson, she explained how SH P
volunteers help the enrollees to conpare and choose a cost
effective prescription drug plan. She stressed that this help
is provided to the enrollees for any of the three described
programs, utilizing translators when necessary.

3:20: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how benefit plan assignnents are
being rectified for the dual eligible clients who reside in an
assisted living facility which doesn’'t recognize the default
pl an, effectively leaving the resident wthout prescription drug
coverage. Further, he asked whether there is a 30 day delay in
benefit start-up from when the client enrolls in the appropriate
pl an.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 4- February 2, 2006



JON SHERWOOD, Medical Assistant Admnistrator for Medicaid,
Ofice of Program Review, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, Departnment
of Health and Social Services (DHSS), explained that nursing
care and assisted living care facilities operate under different
rul es; however, clients in both facilities have been effected by

being randomy assigned to a new benefit plan conpany. He
explained that a client nay be assigned to a plan that hasn't
contracted with their facilities participating pharnmacy. In a

nursing honme, a plan is obligated to provide drugs, via
authorizing an "out of network exception” purchase, through the

long-term facilities regular pharmacy. In assisted living
facilities, the requirenments provide residents the option to
continue to receive prescription drugs via their previous

provider while they establish enrollnment with a new benefit
pl an. Once a client's appropriate enrollnment is established or
changed, coverage takes affect at the beginning of the follow ng
mont h, which can create a transitional |apse requiring coverage

t hrough the "out of network"™ proviso. In further response, he
clarified that if a client is enrolled in "plan A" and is
changing to "plan B', "plan A" is expected to provide
prescription drugs until such tine as "plan B" assunes the

responsi bility, thus creating a seanl ess change-over.

CHAIR WLSON described a situation in which a pharnmacist was
denied a contract with a particular benefit plan conpany naking
it inpossible to dispense prescription drugs to the clients who
were assigned or had chosen that particular benefit plan
conpany. She asked how this type of situation is being
addr essed.

MR. SHERWOOD explained that the state has been providing
prescription drugs for the dual eligible clients, but as of
January 1, 2006, this becane the obligation of the private
benefit plan conpanies through Medicare Part D. He descri bed
the four major steps taken by the departnent to inplenent this
change. During the last week of Decenber 2005, 30 day refills

were authorized for all non-controlled drugs for Medicaid
recipients, to provide clients a supply buffer for the first
transitional nonth. Addi tionally, procedures were sent out to

the dual recipient clients to present to their pharnaci sts which
ensured that reinbursenent would be forthcomng for the

phar maceuti cal services rendered. Included in the information
was a hot line nunber for prescription authorization via
Medicaid's fiscal agent First Health. In response to Chair

WIlson, he explained that authorization is acconplished by
entering a pre-authorization code into the system which is then

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 2, 2006



used by the pharnacist for billing purposes to provide imediate
cl ai m processi ng and weekly rei nbursenent.

3:29:21 PM

CHAIR WLSON reported that pharnmacists are reporting difficulty
in getting through on the toll free telephone nunber, to the
detrinment of the custonmers and the business. She asked where
the toll free telephone nunbers originate, and whether this
her et of or e- cunber sone situati on has been i nproved.

MR. SHERWOOD stated that the toll free lines are sonetines
answered in Alaska but primarily route to Virginia, and that to
his knowl edge the system is inproving. He expl ained where the
bottl eneck occurs, and said that CVM5 has issued instructions to

all of the benefit plan conpanies to provide additiona
tel ephone lines, including "specialized" |I|ines. In further
response, he stated that he is not sure how nany total lines are

available in Al aska or nation w de.
3:31:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked whether it is First Health who
covers these lines, and whether First Health is not also
responsi ble for fielding a nyriad of other authorization calls.

MR. SHERWOOD confirmed that First Health does field calls for
other agencies, but pointed out that the pharnmacies were
dedi cated a |ine for Medicaid authorization purposes.

3:32: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that it would be illum nating
to have soneone at this hearing call one of the help lines to
check the accessibility and response tine.

3:32: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted a significant difference in the
program costs, and asked whether there is reinbursable subsidy
limt for the dual eligible clients.

3:33:23 PM
MR. SHERWOOD explained that there is a |limt to the anount of

the premium that the federal governnent subsidies based on a
formula called the "Alaska Benchmark," currently rated at

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 2, 2006



$34.66. Any dual eligible client who was automatically assigned
to a plan was assigned to one of the seven Al askan plans priced

at or below this benchmark anount. He pointed out that
enrollees may elect to sign up for a plan that requires a higher
prem um and pay the difference out of pocket. Asked to explain

the advantages of the higher prem um plans, he responded that
the primary difference is the price reduction on drugs not
ot herwi se covered; commonly referred to as "the doughnut hole."
Furthernmore, he assured that the seven avail able Al askan plans
all cover 75 to 95 percent of the 100 drugs nobst comonly
prescribed to Medicare clients. Additionally, each plan is
required to allow beneficiaries the opportunity to apply for
preferential treatnment if they have a nedical necessity to use a
drug not otherw se covered. He stated that this fornulary
exception provision also allows for an appeal s process.

3:36: 08 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked how easy it is to apply for the formulary
exception/ appeal, whether it can be managed over the phone, and
who hel ps the elderly and disabled clients through the process.

MR. SHERWOOD responded that wusually the client's doctor or
prescri bing physician, and sonetinmes the pharnmacist provides
assi st ance. He explained that CM5 is targeting the doctors and
pharmaci sts to receive instructions on how to obtain a formulary
exception, as it usually requires sone nedical justification or
expl anat i on.

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that this could be a significant burden
for the doctors or pharnmacists. She asked M. Sherwood if he
could report on how the pharnmacists are handling this inposed
obligation, whether the departnent has been contacted by any
phar maci sts, and how DHSS has responded to their needs

3:37:51 PM

MR. SHERWOOD stated, "They have certainly let us know they're
having problens, and they are having to work long and hard to
work through the problens with plans, and the backup plan, and
CMVB. ™ He described the difficulties, confusion, and delays
bei ng experienced by the pharmacists as they attenpt to fill
Medi care prescriptions through the newy defaulted/ assigned
pl ans, ascertaining which plan applies, establishing whether
it's the appropriate plan for the client, and dealing with the
m scommuni cations from Medicare regarding a client’s co-pay
applicability. The departnment has inplenmented contingency

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 2, 2006



procedures to enable clients to receive their prescription drugs

via a pre-authorization code. Theoretically, the pharnmaci st
accesses the code through the First Health help desk tel ephone
nunber, and the state provides followup to bill the benefit

plan for the <claim Additionally, he said that DHSS has
recently becone aware of situations in small communities where
the pharnmacists don't have a contract with the clients benefit
plan provider, or the plan is not recognized in the system
creating a problem that is still being addressed. He stressed
that nonitoring and nodifying the contingency plan is on-going,
and that individual attention is being provided by the DHSS
staff on a case-by-case basis for correct claimsubm ssion.

3:41:10 PM

CHAIR WLSON stressed that this has not been an easy transition,

and asked how DHSS is responding to the pharmacists who have
supplied «clients wth prescription drugs and are now
experiencing significant delays in receiving reinbursement from
Medi care, effectively incapacitating the business.

3:42:29 PM

MR. SHERWOOD offered that there could be various reasons why
Medi care has not paid clainms, but he offered that through the
DHSS contingency plan pharnmacists can submit/resubmt to the
state for paynent.

3:43: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recalled that the Alaska SeniorCare
prescription drug program authorization passed through the
| egislature as an interim neasure, and he asked when it is
schedul ed to term nate.

M5. UKO DEMABI A responded that the SeniorCare authorization, the
Seni orCare cash assistance, and the "wap-around” to Medicare
prograns each have a sunset date of June 30, 2007.

MR. SHERWOCOD explained that last year’s legislature passed a
bill to extend the SeniorCare program and extended the drug
benefit to a wap-around for Medicare, with an 18 nonth limt.
He explained that the wap-around pays for the premum or the
deductible that an eligible client would be required to neet
under a Medicare Part D plan or a conparable prescription drug
pl an. In response to Representative Seaton, he reported that
the SeniorCare prescription drug plan is not being wdely

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- February 2, 2006



utilized with less than 100 people thus far enrolled, but the
SeniorCare cash plan has an enrollnment of approximately 7,000

Wth the exception of the dual eligible clients who were
defaulted into the system enrollnment in Mdicare Part D plans
in Alaska is |ow He recalled that the statistics in the CM5
report, published in January 13, 2006, show that four fifths of

the enrollees are the dual eligible clients. Feedback from the
SeniorCare office indicates that participants are "waiting to
see ... how these first nonths play-out before they enroll."

The open enrollnment period runs through My 15, 2006, wthout
penalty, and he said sone people are possibly trying to avoid
the "start-up headaches" by waiting.

3:47: 22 PM

CHAIR WLSON stressed that every effort should be made to get
people signed up to prevent them from incurring the permanent
penalty rate, and she asked if there is an additional, intensive
outreach program planned should the enrollnment figures not
i ncrease by March 30, 2006.

M5. UKO DEMABI A expl ained that information/counseling sites are
avai l abl e throughout the state to assist people in choosing a
plan and enrolling. She stated that SHI P plans to increase the
nunber of volunteers in expectation of a run on these sites in
March and April, follow ng a stepped-up adverti sing canpai gn.

3:49: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whether there is adequate funding to
provi de enough dedicated staff for facilitating the enroll nent
of the known eligible clients. She reported a |lack of outreach
information being dissemnated in her district, and expressed
concern about the ability of the volunteers to provide enough
statewi de services to the "very people who need it the nost."
She inquired if additional funding is needed and available to
Ms. Ukoi dermabia's office to acconplish this task

3:50: 38 PM

M5. UKO DEMABI A described the make-up of the SeniorCarel/ Senior
Information office, which has three enployees including her;
however, SeniorCare has recently authorized a nuch-needed
additional admnistrative position. She pointed out that on the
SeniorCare website a full |ist of the volunteers is available,
and she stated that primarily the volunteers are provided
t hrough professional agencies. She stressed that in the

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- February 2, 2006



villages the volunteers visit the recipient's hones, wth
wireless laptop conputers to acconplish the enrollnment process.
State noney would be helpful to fund nore outreach, train
addi ti onal volunteers, and augnent the federal grants, she said.

3:53: 28 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired if DHSS submtted a state budget request
to make funds available in anticipation of these needs for
fiscal year 2005 or 2006, whether the funding was granted, and
if M. Ukoidenabia considers the situation to have peaked and
that activity will now begin to "simrer down."

M5. UKO DEMABI A declined to answer the budget question, but
opined that enrollment will not simer down "anytinme soon."” She
expl ained the continued need for additional office staff, as
volunteers fall away followng the initial enrollnment rush. To
further questions, she described the $40,000 outreach canpaign
that is now underway, and she provided assurance that a conputer
IS not necessary in order to obtain information about Medicare
Part D.

3:55:21 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired whether there is a statewde |ist of known
eligible clients which could be accessed and utilized to assure
that every known recipient has been assi sted.

M5. UKO DEMABI A responded that SHIP relies on the nationa
Medi care dat abase as its resource.

3:56:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA enphasi zed the need for physical outreach
to access residents in their hones.

M5. UKO DEMABI A agreed that person to person contact is the best
way to provide assistance, and additional state-funded staff
positions would be very helpful towards that end, and could
provi de support to the vol unteers.

3:57: 50 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked what issues are addressed in the contingency
pl an circul ated by DHSS on February 2, 2006.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -10- February 2, 2006



MR. SHERWOOD explained that it directs pharmacists who are not
able to get a claim paid through a client’s benefit plan, to
call the First Health pharmacy |ine and receive an authorization
for the claimto be paid by Mdicaid.

3:59: 07 PM

CHAIR WLSON, opening public testinony, addressed the on-line
w tnesses and asked them to limt their testinony to recent,
rel evant experiences of the past 7-10 days.

3:59: 58 PM

BILL ALTLAND, Omer, Wale Tail Pharmacy; Menber, Pharnmacy
Board, explained that he and his wife are the co-owners and
attending pharnmacists of the only pharmacy on Prince of Wiles
| sl and. He related an incident that he said is typical of what
has been occurring since Decenber 2005:

W had a dual eligible come into our drug store this
nmorni ng, he was [randomy] enrolled in a plan that we
do not have a contract wth. The reason [why] we do
not have a contract with this plan [is] because they
didn't offer us one, or we didn't ever hear [back]
from them The contingency or transition plan, [was

to be] Wellpoint/Anthem ... [but] we don't have a
contract with [them either] .... ... This ... Native
el der ... had mai ntenance nedicines [which] he needed.

[ The claim wouldn't go through on the [Medicare
assigned] plan, [which] said our pharnacy was not a

participating nenber [the] Wllpoint/Anthem ... 14-
step nmechanism ... didn't work ... [nor could we] get
through to Wellpoint/Anthenmis help desk. ... | went

ahead and transmtted these clainms to Medicaid.
Medicaid rejected, [and] said that this [man is] dual
eligible ... on Medicare .... ... W called the help
desk [at] Medicare. The pharmacy help desk was
mentioned [earlier in testinony], that's about a six
step process to get a real person, and it takes a |long
time in itself just to get to sonmebody on the Medicaid
First Health help desk, .... So, all these steps take
a long tine. | ended up spending over an hour to get
to the point where | [spoke with] an actual person
from First Health, ... and they said they'd get back
tonme. ... |I'd gone through all the steps to get down
to the step where Medicaid is the |ast payer, .... ..

By this tinme the patient had been in our pharmacy for

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -11- February 2, 2006



over an hour, so we went ahead and dispensed the

medi cati ons. [The drugs] ... weren't paid [for],
[but] ... we did get a call back from ... the Al aska
Medi cai d phar maci st. He was concerned and hel pful,
but still we did not have any paynent [authorization].

First Health did call back this afternoon, and ny
wife was on the phone ... trying to get

[ rei mbursenment] set-up to go through on Medicaid and
that in itself took 45 mnutes; tied up both of our
pharmacy business lines .... ... Hopefully this wll
be getting better but it's just an indication of how
much time it takes to transmt clainms in rura
area[s]. ... One last thing | want to nmention is that
this [man] really had no idea what this neant, :
[his] prescription drug plan going from Medicaid to

Medicare. ... There's been no trainer to Prince of
Wal es Island, there has been no training of seniors
that I know of .... ... | don't know if it's that way
in the other rural areas of the state, but ... | had
to train two pharmacy technicians to work wth our
seniors and ... folks really don't have a cl ue.

4:05:16 PM/

CHAI R WLSON asked how M. Altland' s technicians have managed to
determ ne the appropriate plans for their clients, wthout the
benefit of training.

MR. ALTLAND answered that the anpunt of instructional materials
arriving from the various agencies, via mail and FAX, has been

overwhelmng and difficult to keep up wth. However, he
expl ained that the information has allowed them to becone self-
educated on the topic. He also reported that he hired an

addi tional enployee in Decenber to help with this transition and
to create a list of their eligible clients, which has been used
for outreach purposes. In short, he said, "It's taken a ... ot
of tinme."

4:06: 30 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked how nany of the new benefit plans he has
contacted and requested a contract from wth or wthout
success.

MR. ALTLAND answered that he has <contacted and received

responses from the seven Alaska plans, but only four would
contract with his pharmacy. He pointed out that he does have a

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -12- February 2, 2006



percentage of custonmers who were assigned to the three plan
provi ders unavailable to his pharnmacy. Currently, he is working
wth these clients to choose an alternative plan provider.
Al so, the local Native clinic has been sending their seniors to
his pharmacy for assistance, even though they are not his
regul ar custoners. He said that the Native clinic was at a
| oss, not having received training and w thout the benefit of
conput er access. Finally, he stated, ... "It's very, very
confusing, 11 plans, 28 options. Ce |'ve been a pharnmaci st
for 25 years, ... it's really confusing to ne, | don't see how
nost seniors would have a clue.”

CHAI R WLSON expl ored whether it would be helpful if each Native
clinic would try to do sone training.

MR. ALTLAND said that he is not famliar with how reinbursenent
works for third parties under the Native health system but he
can report that nmany of the local Native elders don't utilize
the system perhaps because they have private insurance or are
on Medicare. Neither, he conceded, could he say for certain how

much training may have taken place. But, he added, the Native
Heal th system does have a limted fornmulary, and he often fills
prescriptions for the clinic's patients. He expressed concern

for the Natives who have been assigned one of the three
unavai |l abl e plans and are not receiving help to re-enroll.

4:09:21 PM

DIRK WHI TE, Omer, Harry Race Pharnmacy & Photo, echoed M.
Altland's testinony, that it is a tinme-consunmng process to
obtain a response via the tel ephone, estimating his |abor costs
to date to be approximately $24,000 "in tine that we've paid ...
to have people sit on hold." He described the inpact to his
busi ness, when his eight phone lines are tied up in Medicare
related calls, his staff cannot tend to regular business, and
custoners are frustrated. Further, he reported that because his
policy is to provide a client nedications, he estinmates that he
is currently hol di ng out st andi ng cl ai s anount i ng to
approxi mately $40,000, "and we have no idea when we're going to
get paid."” The Well point/Anthem has not been hel pful, nor is it
an option as a contract is required to be conpliant with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (H PPA).
Al so, he described the recent discovery that dual eligible
clients are arbitrarily being "switched over" to Mdicare Part
D, without notification. He begged the need for a streanlined
process to be enacted to provide the pharmacists with an easy
means to serve the Medicare clients, and suggested an "override

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -13- February 2, 2006



code. " He said, "I hope we can find sonebody to ... give us
sone help and sone relief so we can go back to helping our
patients ... instead of being insurance agents."

4:16: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA t hanked the pharmacists for their efforts,
and stressed the inportance of their work the community.

4:17:19 PM

DON ROBERTS introduced hinself as a recipient of social security
disability and a nonparticipating eligible for Mdicare Part D
benefits stating, "Qite frankly, any governnmental ... program
seens to be like a nightmare just to ... get registered.” He
opined that the information issued from Medicaid/ Medicare to
hel p people make this change has been "difficult, convol uted,
and devious." He stressed that anyone would have difficulty in
under st anding how to choose an appropriate plan fromthe options
given and the instructions provided. "You should be outraged at
what people are going through,” he said, and nade several
predi ctions of w despread angst and crine that nmay occur when
peopl e are not able to obtain their necessary nedication(s).

4:20:13 PM

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Pharnacist, stated that the major problens
have been adequately outlined by the previous callers. Still an
i ssue, however, is the conmunication |link between the pharnacies
and the state. He reported that the last time information and
instructions were issued from DHSS it took about five days to
reach Ketchi kan, and he cited the non-arrival of the information
that M. Sherwood reported as being dissem nated to pharnacists
earlier today. Further, he stressed that the Well point/Anthem
is not a workable backup and should be dispensed wth,
reiterating the “no contract” problem He reported that the co-
paynment reinbursenent that the state has established does work,
al beit slowy.

CHAI R WLSON asked whether it is possible for DHSS to distribute
information directly to the pharmacists via e-mail.

4:22:34 PM
MR. SHERWOOD expl ained that after it was made apparent to the

departnment that the pharmacists were experiencing delays in
receiving departnmental conmunication, DHSS began transmtting

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -14- February 2, 2006



comuni cations directly to the Al aska Pharmaceutical Association
(AkPhA) for distribution.

M5. UKO DEMABI A confirmed that Nancy Davis, Director, AkPhA, has

a master pharmaceutical e-mail list that is available and being
used.
4:23:25 PM

JENNI FER  ADAMS, Representative, Anchorage Comunity Mental
Health Services (ACVHS); Program Coordinator, Medicare Plan D,
reported that ACMHS has 600 consuners who are affected by
Medi care Pl an D. She stated that since August this change-over
has beconme her full-time job. The goal of ACMHS has been to
provide enrollment support for their clients in an effort to
keep them as stable as possible. Unaware of the various
training possibilities, she said that she has primarily educated
herself on how to adm nister the program  She pointed out that
a recent article in the |ocal newspaper was grossly erroneous in
reporting that Medicare Plan D has been successful in Al aska.
Everyday a number of her clients have trouble in accessing their
medi cat i ons. Currently, she knows of two patients who are off
their medications entirely because they can neither afford the
co-pays nor handle the angst of trying to access their
medi cations, which includes calling multiple |ocations, having
to hold for over an hour at a time, and the other difficulties
involved with the new system "The results of going off
psychot herapeutic nedications can be devastating," she said,
stressing that the ACWVHS conmunity is suffering because of
Medi care Plan D. The pharmacies that she works with have had
difficulty and denied her patients their nedications, when the
Wl | poi nt/ Anthem option fell through and the assigned benefit
pl ans could not be accessed. Because it takes so long on the
phone, she said she is only able to assist eight individuals per
day. Wiile the various agencies are blamng each other, none
are responding to her pleas, and she has sone clients who are on
their seventh day wthout <critical nedications. Cont acti ng
Senator Lisa Miurkowski's office proved to be sonewhat hel pful

and she attributed a ray of success due to that contact.
However, she stressed that this is nore than frustrating and
people are suffering the effects of a failed governnent system

4:27:54 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked for an exanple of what the co-pay costs are
for her clients.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 15- February 2, 2006



M5. ADAMS responded that the co-pay costs range from $15.00 into
the hundreds of dollars, explaining that even a co-pay of $5.00
is exorbitant for sonmeone who has 24 nedications to purchase
She pointed out that it is unaffordable for the people who live
on a low or fixed incone. She described the roster system that
she has used to reach her eligible clients and enroll them in
the appropriate plan, and stressed that these are individuals
who are unable to self advocate or nmintain enough focus of
their energy to enroll. In attenpting to help these persons who
are nentally disabled, she reported that she and the clinicians
at ACMHS are entirely overburdened with the admnistration of
Medi care Part D. In response to a question, she said that she
has thus far managed to enroll about 400 of the 600 people on
her client list. Continuing, M. Adans explained how enroll nent
was done in-mass beginning in Novenber to ensure that when the
roll-over happened in January, every client would have received
a new card, understand the new plan, and not experience gaps in
cover age. Despite these efforts, enrollnment did not happen, no

cards or multiple cards were received, and she said, "Cone
January 3rd ... all of ny efforts went down the tubes,
basically."

CHAIR WLSON conjectured that perhaps the pharmacies in the
vi |l | ages have been nore acconmodating than the pharmacies in the
| arger cities.

4:31:33 PM

M5. UKO DEMABI A asked Ms. Adanms whet her she has been accessing
the Alaska SeniorCare (ASC) hotline to receive support and

assi st ance. She provided Ms. Adans with appropriate telephone
nunbers for statewide and local dialing, and explained that
al though a nessage will need to be left, a sanme-day response
wi |l be received.

4:33: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA enphasized that there are only three
people trying to field an obvious statewide problem that is
reaching crisis levels. She asked what action could be taken to
correct this oversight.

4:33:55 PM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that this is a nation-w de situation
and the federal governnent was not prepared for the "glitches"”

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 16- February 2, 2006



that have surrounded this change-over. She agreed that nore
assi stance is needed, particularly to help the pharnmacists.

4:34:28 PM

MS. UKO DEMABI A explained that in her conversations wth AkPhA
it was determned how training for the pharnmacists could be
incorporated into her “seniors” training classes. However, due
to the lack of flexibility with the federal funding and not
bei ng provided state funding to acconplish this task, it has not
been possible to create a joint program

CHAIR WLSON indicated it appears that the pharnacists now have
an understanding of the program options and how to enroll the
eligible people, but that the conmunication lines are basically
j ammed, prohibiting access.

4:36: 33 PM

MR. SHERWOCD highlighted that nost dual eligible clients are
working wth their pharnmacists, but for anyone who is
experiencing problenms he provided the recipient help line

t el ephone nunbers, which should provide a sane-day response. He
al so stated that the state contingency plan is being revised as
needs arise, but he explained that this change over was
configured by the federal government to expressly make state
gover nment assistance a |ast resort opti on, effectively
mnimzing what the departnment is legally able to provide
t hrough Medi cai d.

4:39: 03 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that regardless of whose responsibility it
falls under, when people are unable to receive their nedications
it causes problens, and she stressed that neasures need to be
t aken.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adj ourned at 4:39:43 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -17- February 2, 2006



